
Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are held in accessible 
locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if 
you have questions regarding this notice. 

 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL MEETING 
Wednesday, June 27, 2018 – 10:15AM 

Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 
94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 

www.co.curry.or.us  
 
 
 

Please Note – Special Meeting begins at 10:15AM  
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Call To Order & Pledge Of Allegiance 

 
2. Adoption/Amendment of the Agenda 

 
3. Public Comments 

 
4. Pneumatic Tire Roller Purchase – Richard Christensen, Roadmaster (5 minutes)  

(Packet Page 3) 
 

5. Agreement with CFPA – Title III Firewise 2018 Emergency Management – Jeremy 
Dumire, Emergency Services  (5 minutes)  (Packet Page 10) 

  
6. Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Dispatch – Sheriff Ward (10 minutes)  (Packet 

Page 15) 
 

7. Supplemental Budgets -  Louise Kallstrom, County Accountant  (10 minutes)   (Packet 
Page 68) 

 
8. Master Payroll – Julie Swift Personnel and Payroll Coordinator  (10 minutes)   (Packet 

Page 100) 
 

9. Opioid Litigation – John Huttl, County Counsel   (15  minutes)  (Packet Page 215) 
  

10. Abel Insurance Agency Orders  
A. SAIF Work Comp coverage (2 minutes)  (Packet Page 224) 
B. Airport Liability Insurance  (2 minutes)  (Packet Page 227) 
C. CIS Liability, Property & Crime Insurance ( minutes)  (Packet Page 231) 

 
 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are held in accessible 
locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if 
you have questions regarding this notice. 

 
 
 

11. Announcements 
A. Coos-Curry Housing Authority  2 Vacancies Terms Expiring  Jan 3, 2021 and 

April 29, 2022,  respectively  
B. Mountain Drive Special Road District Vacancy Term Expiring  Dec 31, 2019   
C. July 4, 2018 County Offices Closed 
D. July 18, 2018 General Meeting 10:00AM  – Commissioners’ Hearing Room 
E. July 25, 2018 Workshop 10:00AM  - Commissioners’ Hearing Room   
F. July 25 – 28, 2018 Curry County Fair 
G. August 1, 2018 General Meeting 10:00AM  – Commissioners’ Hearing Room 

 
12. County Administrator Report – Clark Schroeder, County Administrator  

A. Update on Travel Policy Enforcement  (10 minutes)   (Packet Page 239)  
B. Workshop Policy  (10 minutes)  (Packet Page 240) 

  
13. Adjourn 

















CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Agreement with Coos Forest Protective Agency to carry 
out Title III Firewise Functions for the 2018 – 2019 period. 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/2018 DEPARTMENT: Emergency Mgmt TIME NEEDED: 5 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: see Brief Background below 
CONTACT PERSON: J. Dumire PHONE/EXT: 3296  TODAY’S DATE: 06/21/2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) This agreement documents 
spending of Title III monies for Firewise functions to be performed by Coos Forest 
Protective Agency.  The activities started in Spring, so the effective date is May1, 2018.  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Agreement with Exh A budget 
(2) Liability Form 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk       Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:             Address:                      
☒Email a Digital Copy to: Dominique.C.RAY@oregon.gov  City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  CONSENT   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us
mailto:Dominique.C.RAY@oregon.gov


 

County and CFPA Agreement  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CURRY COUNTY AND COOS FOREST PROTECTIVE 

ASSOCIATION   

This Agreement is entered into on the date last set forth below by and between Curry County, a political 

subdivision of the State of Oregon acting by and through its Board of Commissioners (hereinafter referred 

to as “County”), and Coos Forest Protective Association (hereinafter referred to as “CFPA”).  The parties 

hereby agree to the following:  

WHEREAS, the County received funds under Title III of the Secure Rural Schools Act (SRS); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SRS, Title III County Funds may only be used to carry out certain activities 

under the Firewise Communities program, to reimburse participating counties for search and rescue and 

other emergency services, or to develop community wildfire protection plans; and  

WHEREAS, the County desires to use the Title III funds to carry out activities under the Firewise 

Communities program (hereinafter referred to as “Firewise Program”); and  

WHEREAS, under the Firewise Communities Program, the County desires to assist a community in 

becoming a recognized Firewise Community under the Firewise Communities USA/Recognition Program; 

and  

WHEREAS, the CFPA desires to participate in the Firewise Communities USA/Recognition Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED that the County shall assist the CFPA’s participation in the 

Firewise Communities USA/Recognition Program;  

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that the County’s assistant is subject to the following conditions: 

1. The County shall provide funding to the CFPA in an amount not to exceed $76,352.00 (see 
Exhibit A) from May 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019;

2. CFPA shall receive funding via reimbursement from the County;

3. Reimbursement will only be provided for activities related to participation in the Firewise 
guidance regarding the authorized use of Title III funds;

4. To receive reimbursement, the CFPA must submit monthly copies of all timesheets and 
invoices;

5. County will provide funds to CFPA within thirty (30) days upon receipt of all invoices and 
timesheets.  All invoices and timesheets are to be mailed to: 

Louise Kallstrom, County Accountant 
94235 Moore St. Suite 125 
Gold Beach, OR 97444 

6. The CFPA shall provide the County with quarterly reports, updating the County on work

completed to-date;

7. The County reserves the right to audit or request additional documentation from CFPA;

8. CFPA will explain to property owners and residents the importance of fire fuels reduction in

accordance with the Firewise Communities Program.

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT, the CFPA shall comply with all Federal and State laws in performing 

any and all activities in the Firewise Communities USA/Recognition Program; 



 

County and CFPA Agreement  

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT the CFPA shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless Curry County 

and its employees against any and all loss, damage, liability, claims, demands, or costs resulting from 

injury or harm to persons or property to the extent arising out of or in any way connected with CFPA’s 

participation in the Firewise Communities USA/Recognition Program;  

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT the CFPA is not an officer, employee or agent of the County, and CFPA 

has the complete responsibility and bears the sole risk for participating in the Firewise Communities 

USA/Recognition Program.   

 

COOS FOREST PROTECTIVE      CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF  

ASSOCIATION       COMMISSIONERS  

 

______________________________    ________________________________ 

Signature        Sue Gold, Chair  

 

Mike Robison       _______________________________ 

Name (printed)       Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair  

 

District Manager      _______________________________ 

Title        Court Boice, Commissioner   

  

______________________________    _______________________________ 

Date          Date  

 

63612 Fifth Road 

Coos Bay, OR  97420 

Address 

 

541-267-3161 

Telephone  



FIREWISE ASSISTANCE Reimburse for analyzing and updating data to identify high 
risk/high hazard areas and structures.

FIREWISE FORESTER Reimburse for monitoring and updating the Curry Wildfire 
Protection Plan and continuing education and outreach to 
homeowners.

FIREWISE EDUCATION AND OUTREACH Reimburse for purchase and distribution of educational 
literature to homeowners and design and display of 
defensible space informational signs.

TOTAL FIREWISE PROGRAM

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CURRY COUNTY AND COOS FOREST PROTECTIVE A   
EXHIBIT A



$5,000.00

$69,313.00

$2,039.00

$76,352.00

        ASSOCIATION  
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  IGA’s for Curry County Dispatch Services for FY 2018-
2019 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 6/27/18  DEPARTMENT: Sheriff  TIME NEEDED: 10 min.  
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: Sheriff Ward   PHONE/EXT:3322  TODAY’S DATE: 6/21/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) City of Port Orford and Port Orford Police Dept IGA (2) Port Orford Fire IGA 
(3) City of Gold Beach IGA  (4) Cal Ore Ground Ambulance Services IGA 
(5) Port Orford Ambulance   IGA  (6) Langlois RFFD 
(7) Pistol River fire  
 

INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:  Sheriff’s Office   
☒Send Printed Copy to:          Address:             94235 Moore St. Ste311    
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:  Gold Beach, OR 97444 

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us










































































































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET-End of Year 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  06/21/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) To recognize revenues and costs 
listed on attached Memo. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Memo 
(2) Resolution 
(3) Supplemental Budget (Exhibits A through O) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


                                                                                                          

Memo 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Louise Kallstrom, County Accountant 

Date: June 21, 2018 

Re: End of Year – Supplemental Budget #17 

  
 
Supplemental Budget #17 
 

Exhibit A Fund 1.10 Elections – To recognize revenues and costs of (3) special elections 
during the fiscal year 2017-2018. 

 
Exhibit B Fund 1.10 Tax Collections – To recognize cost of payroll after union negotiations in 

June 2017 and to correct for new office costs for tax collection. 
 
Exhibit C Fund 1.10 Planning – To recognize cost of payroll after union negotiations in June 

2017 and to correct for office costs for planning. 
 
Exhibit D Fund 1.51 Grant #07-All Care Planning – To recognize revenue from All Care and to 

budget a line item to return the funds. 
 
Exhibit E Fund 1.21 Clerk Recording Reserve – To budget to cover non capital expenditures 

related to office move.  
 
Exhibit F Fund 1.25 Law Library – To recognize cost of payroll after union negotiations in June 

2017. 
 
Exhibit G Fund 1.27 Towers Operations and Maint – To correct for costs of Day Wireless 

services, electricity costs and diesel fuel costs. 
 
Exhibit H Fund 1.30 Airport Operations – To correct for costs of repairs and maintenance and 

electricity costs. 
 
Exhibit I Fund 2.12 Victim Assist-Criminal Fines – To recognize cost of payroll after union 

negotiations in June 2017. 
 
Exhibit J Fund 2.12 Victim Assist-VOCA Basic – To recognize cost of payroll after union 

negotiations in June 2017 and to correct budgeted revenue line item. 



2 

Exhibit K Fund 2.14 Fair-Event Center – To recognize cost of payroll after change in manager 
personnel. 

 
Exhibit L Fund 2.22 Vehicle Replacement – To correct for costs of broker fees for sales of 

vehicles. 
 
Exhibit M Fund 2.32 Cable TV PEG Access – To correct for costs of Blue Room and Hearing 

room equipment and hallway speakers. 
 
Exhibit N Fund 2.33 Building Repair and Maintenance – To recognize cost of payroll after union 

negotiations in June 2017. 
 
Exhibit O Fund 3.48 County Schools – To recognize receipt of SRS Funds and the expenditure 

line of pass through of these funds to County School Districts. 
 
 
 
 
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibits A through O for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to 
cover expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   27th  day of June, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 

































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  SHERIFF-CHETCO FIRE COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  06/22/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Recognize USFS reimbursement 
for Chetco Fire and establish Sheriff Department payroll costs budget. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibit A) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   27th  day of June, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  FEMA Grant-CHETCO FIRE COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  06/22/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Set up Grant #44 to record costs 
of Chetco Fire reimbursable by FEMA. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibit A) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   27th  day of June, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  FEMA Grant-CHETCO FIRE COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  06/22/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Set up Grant #45 to record Road 
Department costs of Chetco Fire reimbursable by FEMA. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibit A) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   27th  day of June, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET-FUND 1.11 COMMISSIONERS 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  06/22/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) To transfer funds from General 
Fund to Commissioners Fund to adjust budget for anticipated payroll costs as of 06/30/18 
and to establish revenue budget to receive reimbursements for travel costs. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibits A and B) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   27th  day of June, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 







CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Master Payroll 2018-19 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 6/27/18  DEPARTMENT: Finance/P/R TIME NEEDED: 10 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: Julie Swift PHONE/EXT: 3233  TODAY’S DATE: 6/22/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Order 
(2) Exhibit A - Spreadsheet 
(3) Longevity 
(4) Elected Officials 
(5) Exhibits B, C, D and E – Salary conversion tables 

INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF    ) 
SALARIES AND CLASSIFICATIONS  ) 
OF CURRY COUNTY PERSONNEL FOR ) ORDER:_________ 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019    )  
 

WHEREAS, annually, around July 1, the Board of Curry County Commissioners 
is required to adopt a Master Payroll Order; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Curry County, a political subdivision 

of the State of Oregon, did review said Budget Committee recommendations and find 
that the following pay and classification levels are appropriate. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 
 

1. THAT: 
 

(a) The Curry County employees, as listed therein in Exhibit “A”, attached 
hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, shall be classified and 
compensated, as described in Exhibit “A”, effective July 1, 2018, and this shall 
continue until the Board of County Commissioners deems appropriate; and 
 
(b) The pay schedules as described herein in Exhibits “B”, “C”, “D” and “E” 
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, shall be adopted by 
Curry County, effective July 1, 2018, and shall continue until such time as the 
Board of County Commissioners deems appropriate; and 
 
(c) Employees and Elected Officials shall continue to pay the employee 6% 
contribution to PERS as a pre-tax deduction; and 
 
(d) Elected Officials’ shall be as follows:  County Assessor, County Clerk and 
County Treasurer shall each be increased by $2000 annually; Sheriff shall 
remain the same at $89532 annually;  Commissioner Gold and Commissioner 
Huxley shall each voluntarily receive $10000 annually; Commissioner Boice shall 
voluntarily receive a reduced salary of $46469 annually; and 

 
(e) All non-represented employees shall not receive a cost of living increase 
effective July 1, 2018, or a step increase at anniversary; and 
 
(f) The collective bargaining agreement for SEIU for the period of July 1, 
2017, through June 30, 2020, is currently being negotiated for wages and 
benefits.  Therefore, employees represented by SEIU shall not receive a cost of 
living increase effective July 1, 2018, or a step increase at anniversary.  Curry 
County shall contribute up to $1100 per month per full time employee toward the 
purchase of medical, dental, and vision insurance for eligible SEIU employees.  
The County shall continue to pay a portion of the cost of employee and 
dependent health insurance premium for those employees working half-time (.50 
FTE) or more.  This benefit will be paid on a pro-rata basis.  Any changes as a 
result of the collective bargaining process shall be addressed at a later date; and 



 
Page 2 of 2 

 
(g) The collective bargaining agreement for Teamsters for the period of July 
1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, is currently being negotiated for a new contract 
to begin July 1, 2018.  Therefore, employees represented by Teamsters shall not 
receive a cost of living increase effective July 1, 2018, or a step increase at 
anniversary.  Any changes as a result of the collective bargaining process shall 
be addressed at a later date; and  

 
2. THAT the longevity pay for length of service shall be continued.  Longevity pay is 

based upon the number of years of continuous service to the County.  All 
increases are based upon Step B for each salary range with a cap of two times 
the lowest base rate (Range 3, 37.5 hours); and 

 
3. THAT for the period of July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019, Curry County shall 

contribute up to $1100 per month per full time employee toward the purchase of 
medical, dental, and vision insurance for eligible non-represented employees.  
Elected Officials shall continue to receive a contribution up to $1000 per month 
toward the purchase of medical, dental and vision insurance.  The County shall 
continue to pay a portion of the cost of employee and dependent health 
insurance premium for those employees working half-time (.50 FTE) or more.  
This benefit will be paid on a pro-rata basis; and  

 
4. THAT for the period of July 1, 2018, to December 31, 2018, Curry County shall 

contribute up to $1300 per employee per month toward the purchase of 
medical/hospital, dental, and vision insurance for all Teamsters represented 
employees.  The County shall continue to pay a portion of the cost of employee 
and dependent health insurance premium for those employees working half-time 
(.50 FTE) or more.  This benefit will be paid on a pro-rata basis.  Curry County 
shall contribute $50 per employee per month to the HRA VEBA for all Teamsters 
represented employees. 

 
 
DATED this____ day of June, 2018. 
 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 

   ______________________________ 
   Sue Gold, Chair 

Reviewed as to Form:  
 

   ______________________________ 
___________________     Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
John Huttl 
Curry County Legal Counsel            
           ______________________________ 

   Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY MASTER PAYROLL
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

Exhibit A

Page 1 of 5

PERS
Salary/ Total Health Life PERS County Workers' WC Tax Total

Dept Position Name Status % Union Range Step Hourly Longevity Gross Insurance HRA Insurance FICA Category Portion Comp Ben Fund Cost

BOPTA -             

411.30 County Clerk Renee Kolen EO 0.5% 26.71            26.71              5.00             0.03           2.04           PERS 5.94           0.02          0.27          40.02                   

411.30 Deputy Clerk I open position F 2.5% SEIU U6 A 63.60            -            63.60              27.50           0.16           4.87           OPRSP 7.13           0.05          1.37          104.68                 

411.30 Deputy Clerk I Megan Abke F 2.5% SEIU U6 A 63.60            -            63.60              27.50           0.11           4.87           OPRSP 7.13           0.05          1.37          104.62                 

Elections
414.00 County Clerk Renee Kolen EO 49.5% 2,644.04        2,644.04          495.00         3.24           202.27       PERS 587.77       2.27          2.25          3,936.85              

414.00 Elections Administrator/Chief Deputy Shelley Denney F 95% E12 C 4,558.10        128.63       4,686.73          1,045.00       6.22           358.53       PERS 1,041.86     4.02          4.61          7,146.98              

414.00 Elections Deputy I Ian Ashby F 100% SEIU U7 A 2,803.00        -            2,803.00          1,100.00       4.20           214.43       OPRSP 314.22       2.40          54.60        4,492.85              

Tax Office
415.15 County Assessor Jim Kolen EO 10% 539.55          539.55            100.00         0.66           41.28         PERS 119.94       4.91          0.46          806.79                 

415.15 Chief Tax Deputy Sheryl Luzmoor F 100% SEIU U7 F 3,579.00        103.01       3,682.01          1,100.00       6.55           281.67       PERS 818.51       3.16          4.55          5,896.45              

Treasurer's Office
415.16 County Treasurer Debbie Crumley EO 100% 5,293.67        5,293.67          1,000.00       4.20           404.97       PERS 1,176.78     48.21        4.55          7,932.38              

Assessor's Office
415.17 County Assessor Jim Kolen EO 90% 4,855.95        4,855.95          900.00         5.90           371.48       PERS 1,079.48     44.23        4.10          7,261.13              

415.17 Deputy Assessor Tracy Garner F 100% E11 F 5,214.00        135.40       5,349.40          1,100.00       6.55           409.23       PERS 1,189.17     48.72        4.85          8,107.93              

415.17 Appraiser/Analyst II Lacey Young F 100% SEIU U9 B 3,579.00        -            3,579.00          1,100.00       4.20           273.79       OPSRP 401.21       32.60        4.55          5,395.35              

415.17 Appraiser II Anthony Pagano F 100% SEIU U8 B 3,245.00        -            3,245.00          1,100.00       4.20           248.24       OPSRP 363.76       29.56        4.55          4,995.31              

415.17 Appraiser II Kiley Wegner F 100% SEIU U8 B 3,245.00        -            3,245.00          1,100.00       6.55           248.24       OPSRP 363.76       29.56        4.55          4,997.66              

415.17 Administrative Secretary Wendy Carpenter F 100% SEIU U7 B.5 3,019.00        44.15         3,063.15          1,100.00       6.55           234.33       OPSRP 343.38       2.63          4.55          4,754.59              

415.17 Cartographic Technician Amy Gaddis-Parker F 100% SEIU U7 A 2,803.00        -            2,803.00          1,100.00       6.55           214.43       OPSRP 314.22       2.40          4.55          4,445.15              

District Attorney's Office

415.30 Deputy District Attorney III open position F 100% E14 E 5,964.00        58.03         6,022.03          1,100.00       6.50           460.69       OPSRP 675.07       5.17          4.85          8,274.31              

415.30 Deputy District Attorney I open position F 100% E11 C.5 4,618.00        -            4,618.00          1,100.00       6.55           353.28       OPSRP 517.68       3.96          4.85          6,604.32              

415.30 Office Manager Stacy DeLonge F 82% E9 C.5 3,270.16        -            3,270.16          902.00         3.44           250.17       OPSRP 366.58       2.81          3.98          4,799.14              

415.30 Legal Secretary Tim Smith F 100% SEIU U6 D 3,139.00        -            3,139.00          1,100.00       4.20           240.13       OPSRP 351.88       2.69          4.85          4,842.76              

415.30 CDI Jackie Antunes 0.60       34% SEIU U8 B 706.04          706.04            224.40         2.23           54.01         OPSRP 79.15         0.61          0.99          1,067.43              

Recording
415.40 County Clerk Renee Kolen EO 50% 2,670.75        2,670.75          500.00         3.28           204.31       PERS 593.71       2.29          2.28          3,976.61              

415.40 Elections Administrator/Chief Deputy Shelley Denney F 5% E12 C 239.90          6.77          246.67            55.00           0.33           18.87         PERS 54.83         0.21          0.24          376.16                 

415.40 Deputy Clerk I open position F 97.5% SEIU U6 A 2,480.40        -            2,480.40          1,072.50       6.39           189.75       OPRSP 278.05       2.13          53.24        4,082.45              

415.40 Deputy Clerk I Megan Abke F 97.5% SEIU U6 A 2,480.40        -            2,480.40          1,072.50       6.39           189.75       OPRSP 278.05       2.13          53.24        4,082.45              

Planning
419.10 County Administrator Clark Schroeder F 5% E19 C.5 359.15          -            359.15            55.00           0.33           27.47         OPSRP 40.26         0.50          0.24          482.95                 

419.10 Community Development Director Carolyn Johnson F 37.5% E15 D.5 2,311.13        -            2,311.13          412.50         2.46           176.80       OPSRP 259.08       18.91        1.82          3,182.69              

419.10 Sr. Planner/Code Enforcement Officer open position .5 FTE 50% N10 A 973.00          973.00            550.00         3.28           74.43         OPSRP 109.07       7.96          2.43          1,720.17              

419.10 Planner Nancy Chester F 80% SEIU U7 D.5 2,661.60        58.86         2,720.46          880.00         5.24           208.12       OPSRP 304.96       2.33          3.64          4,124.76              

Surveyor
419.15 County Surveyor Reily Smith IRR 56.00            4,368.00          -              -            334.15       OPSRP 489.65       39.78        2.18          5,233.77              

GENERAL FUND - 1.10



CURRY COUNTY MASTER PAYROLL
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

Exhibit A

Page 2 of 5

Salary/ Total Health Life PERS County Workers' WC Tax Total
Dept Position Name Status % Union Range Step Hourly Longevity Gross Insurance HRA Insurance FICA Category Portion Comp Ben Fund Cost
419.15 Department Specialist Barbara Colton IRR 15.00            1,170.00          -              -            89.51         OPSRP 131.16       1.00          2.18          1,393.85              

Sheriff - Civil and Criminal
421.20 County Sheriff John Ward EO 40% EO 2,525.33        2,525.33          400.00         3.46           193.19       PERS -             44.50        1.94          3,168.42              

421.20 Captain Mick Espinoza F 30% E15 E 1,893.60        -            1,893.60          330.00         -           2.60           144.86       PERS 420.95       33.37        1.46          2,826.83              

421.20 Sergeant II John Ensley F 100% TMSTR S18 F 5,810.00        193.42       6,003.42          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           459.26       PERS -             105.79      4.85          7,896.08              

421.20 Sergeant II Ted Heath F 15% TMSTR S18 F 871.50          -            871.50            189.62         7.50         1.30           66.67         PERS -             15.42        0.73          1,152.73              

421.20 Road Deputy III Phillip McDonald F 100% TMSTR S3 F 4,884.00        -            4,884.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           373.63       PERS -             86.07        4.85          6,671.30              

421.20 Road Deputy III Nathanael Hughes F 100% TMSTR S3 F 4,884.00        -            4,884.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           373.63       OPSRP 780.46       86.07        4.85          7,451.76              

421.20 Road Deputy II Jaired Freeman F 100% TMSTR S2 F 4,653.00        -            4,653.00          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           355.95       OPSRP 743.55       82.00        4.85          7,159.75              

421.20 Road Deputy II Garrett Shannon F 100% TMSTR S2 E 4,429.00        4,429.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           338.82       OPSRP 707.75       78.05        4.85          6,881.22              

421.20 Road Deputy I Jason Thien F 100% TMSTR S1 F 4,429.00        4,429.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           338.82       OPSRP 707.75       78.05        4.85          6,882.22              

421.20 Road Deputy I Lucas Tobias F 100% TMSTR S1 C 3,826.00        -            3,826.00          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           292.69       OPSRP 611.39       67.42        4.85          6,122.76              

421.20 Road Deputy I Marcus Dennard F 100% TMSTR S1 B 3,644.00        -            3,644.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           278.77       OPSRP 582.31       64.21        4.85          5,896.90              

421.20 Road Deputy I Joshua Teter F 100% TMSTR S1 C 3,826.00        -            3,826.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           292.69       OPSRP 611.39       67.42        4.85          6,125.11              

421.20 Road Deputy I David Vershall F 100% TMSTR S1 F 4,429.00        -            4,429.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           338.82       OPSRP 707.75       78.05        4.85          6,881.22              

421.20 Road Deputy I Jordan White F 100% TMSTR S1 F 4,429.00        -            4,429.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           338.82       OPSRP 707.75       78.05        4.85          6,881.22              

421.20 Road Deputy I open position F 100% TMSTR S1 C 3,826.00        -            3,826.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           292.69       OPSRP 611.39       67.42        4.85          6,125.11              

421.20 Road Deputy I open position F 100% TMSTR S1 C 3,826.00        -            3,826.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           292.69       OPSRP 611.39       67.42        4.85          6,125.11              

421.20 Chief Civil Deputy II Joan Allen-Steinke F 100% TMSTR S14 F 4,367.00        89.80         4,456.80          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           340.95       OPSRP 499.61       78.54        4.85          6,703.49              

421.20 Executive Administrative Assistant DJ Storns F 100% TMSTR S12 C 3,961.00        -            3,961.00          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           303.02       OPSRP 444.03       3.40          4.85          6,036.70              

Corrections
421.26 County Sheriff John Ward EO 25% EO 1,578.33        1,578.33          250.00         2.16           120.74       PERS -             27.81        1.21          1,980.27              

421.26 Captain Mick Espinoza F 10% E15 E 631.20          -            631.20            110.00         -           0.87           48.29         PERS 140.32       11.12        0.49          942.28                 

421.26 Sergeant II Joel Hensley F 70% S18 F 4,067.00        94.78         4,161.78          884.87         -           6.06           318.38       PERS 925.16       73.34        4.85          6,374.44              

421.26 Corporal Lena Rupe F 100% TMSTR S16 E 4,804.00        58.03         4,862.03          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           371.95       OPSRP 776.95       85.68        4.85          7,424.21              

421.26 Corporal Jeremy Krohn F 100% TMSTR S16 C 4,357.00        -            4,357.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           333.31       OPSRP 696.25       76.78        4.85          6,790.94              

421.26 Corrections Deputy III James Eskeli F 100% TMSTR S9 E 4,367.00        -            4,367.00          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           334.08       PERS 970.78       76.96        4.85          7,074.07              

421.26 Corrections Deputy II James Turner F 100% TMSTR S8 F 4,367.00        179.60       4,546.60          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           347.81       PERS 1,010.71     80.12        4.85          7,312.85              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Ryan Brose F 100% TMSTR S7 E 3,961.00        -            3,961.00          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           303.02       OPSRP 632.97       69.80        4.85          6,292.04              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Jordan Rhodes F 100% TMSTR S7 C 3,592.00        3,592.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           274.79       OPSRP 574.00       63.30        4.85          5,831.69              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Ryan Milyard F 100% TMSTR S7 D 3,772.00        -            3,772.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           288.56       OPSRP 602.77       66.47        4.85          6,057.40              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Kristine Phillips F 100% TMSTR S7 C 3,592.00        -            3,592.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           274.79       OPSRP 574.00       63.30        4.85          5,831.69              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Robert Helme F 100% TMSTR S7 C 3,592.00        -            3,592.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           274.79       OPSRP 574.00       63.30        4.85          5,831.69              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Ashley Lofquist F 100% TMSTR S7 C 3,592.00        -            3,592.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           274.79       OPSRP 574.00       63.30        4.85          5,831.69              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Kenneth Moore F 100% TMSTR S7 A 3,258.00        -            3,258.00          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           249.24       OPSRP 520.63       57.41        4.85          5,410.53              

421.26 Corrections Deputy I Andrew Scherbarth F 100% TMSTR S7 A 3,258.00        -            3,258.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           249.24       OPSRP 520.63       57.41        4.85          5,412.88              

421.26 Facilities Maintenance Worker Tad Ringulet F 50% SEIU U6 B.5 1,460.50        1,460.50          550.00         3.28           111.73       OPSRP 163.72       31.62        2.43          2,323.27              

421.26 Health Care Performance Officer Georganne Greene IRR 50.00            2,166.67          -              -            165.75       -             38.18        1.21          2,371.81              

421.26 Jail Nurse Practitioner Mary Frodermann IRR 50.00            625.00            47.81         -             11.01        0.30          684.13                 

421.26 Health Care Performance Officer Jeannine Williams-Barnard IRR 50.00            2,166.67          -              -            165.75       -             38.18        1.21          2,371.81              

Communications
421.51 County Sheriff John Ward EO 15% EO 947.00          947.00            150.00         1.30           72.45         PERS -             16.69        0.73          1,188.16              

421.51 Captain Mick Espinoza F 20% E15 E 1,262.40        -            1,262.40          220.00         -           1.73           96.57         PERS 280.63       22.25        0.97          1,884.55              

421.51 Sergeant II Joel Hensley F 30% S18 E 1,660.80        40.62         1,701.42          379.23         -           2.60           130.16       PERS 378.23       29.98        4.85          2,626.47              

421.51 Sergeant I Briana Francisco F 100% TMSTR S17 A 4,338.00        4,338.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           331.86       OPSRP 486.29       76.44        4.85          6,560.19              

421.51 Communications Deputy III Randy Ullom F 100% TMSTR S12 F 4,584.00        132.00       4,716.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           360.77       PERS 1,048.37     83.11        4.85          7,535.85              

421.51 Communications Deputy III Kathy Mazur F 100% TMSTR S12 F 4,584.00        56.57         4,640.57          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           355.00       PERS 1,031.60     81.78        4.85          7,436.55              

421.51 Communications Deputy I Stacy Aranda F 100% TMSTR S10 F 4,158.00        51.30         4,209.30          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           322.01       OPSRP 471.86       74.18        4.85          6,402.60              

421.51 Communications Deputy I Tracey Morse F 100% TMSTR S10 F 4,158.00        -            4,158.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           318.09       OPSRP 466.11       73.27        4.85          6,343.07              

421.51 Communications Deputy I Bonnita Hennessey F 100% TMSTR S10 B 3,420.00        3,420.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           261.63       OPSRP 383.38       60.27        4.85          5,452.88              

421.51 Communications Deputy I Synthia Westerman F 100% TMSTR S10 A 3,258.00        3,258.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           249.24       OPSRP 365.22       57.41        4.85          5,257.47              

421.51 Communications Deputy I John MacKenzie F 100% TMSTR S10 A 3,258.00        3,258.00          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           249.24       OPSRP 365.22       57.41        4.85          5,257.47              

Juvenile
423.60 Juvenile Director Wendy Lang F 100% E14 F 6,261.00        96.71         6,357.71          1,100.00       6.55           486.36       OPSRP 712.70       112.04      4.85          8,780.21              



CURRY COUNTY MASTER PAYROLL
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

Exhibit A

Page 3 of 5

Salary/ Total Health Life PERS County Workers' WC Tax Total
Dept Position Name Status % Union Range Step Hourly Longevity Gross Insurance HRA Insurance FICA Category Portion Comp Ben Fund Cost
423.60 Sr. Juvenile Counselor open position F 100% SEIU U12 C 4,942.00        -            4,942.00          1,100.00       6.55           378.06       OPSRP 554.00       87.09        4.85          7,072.55              

423.60 Juvenile Counselor II Karlie Wright F 100% SEIU U9 C 4,009.00        57.27         4,066.27          1,100.00       6.55           311.07       OPSRP 455.83       71.66        4.85          6,016.23              

423.60 Juvenile Counselor II Brent Deladurantey F 100% SEIU U9 B.5 3,912.00        -            3,912.00          1,100.00       4.20           299.27       OPSRP 438.54       68.94        4.85          5,827.79              

423.60 Administrative Assistant Summer Matteson-Kinney F 80% SEIU U8 C 2,908.80        -            2,908.80          880.00         3.36           222.52       OPSRP 326.08       2.50          3.88          4,347.14              

Emergency Services
429.10 Emergency Services Coord Jeremy Dumire F 100% E10 B.5 4,189.00        58.03         4,247.03          1,100.00       6.30           324.90       OPSRP 476.09       6.73          4.85          6,165.90              

Solid Waste
432.10 County Legal Counsel John Huttl F 14% E17 F 1,030.26        -            1,030.26          154.00         0.59           78.81         PERS 229.03       0.88          0.68          1,494.25              

Veterans' Services
466.37 Veterans' Services Officer Anthony Voudy F 100% N8 B 3,445.00        3,445.00          1,100.00       4.20           263.54       OPSRP 386.18       5.46          4.85          5,209.24              

466.37 Assistant Veterans Services Officer Jessica Williams IRR 12.00            832.00            OPSRP 93.27         0.71          2.18          

COMMISSIONERS' FUND - 1.11

Commissioners' Office
411.10 Commissioner Court Boice EO 100% 3,872.00        3,872.00          1,000.00       4.20           296.21       OPSRP 434.05       6.13          4.55          5,617.14              
411.10 Commissioner Sue Gold EO 100% 833.33          833.33            1,000.00       4.20           63.75         OPSRP -             1.32          4.55          1,907.15              
411.10 Commissioner Tom Huxley EO 100% 833.33          833.33            1,264.10       -            63.75         OPSRP -             1.32          4.85          2,167.35              

431.00 Roadmaster Richard Christensen F 100% E16 D 6,343.00        6,343.00          1,100.00       6.55           485.24       OPSRP 57.77        4.85          7,997.41              

431.00 Road Maint/Const Foreman Donald Hannen F 100% R10 D 26.31            58.03         4,640.36          1,100.00       6.55           354.99       OPSRP 520.18       191.41      4.88          6,818.37              

431.00 Office Manager Diana Carpenter F 100% R8 F 23.86            119.03       4,274.65          1,100.00       6.55           327.01       PERS 950.25       3.67          4.88          6,667.01              

431.00 Sr. Accounting Specialist open position F 100% R6 C 16.95            -            2,952.13          1,100.00       6.55           225.84       OPSRP 330.93       2.53          4.88          4,622.86              

431.00 Shop Foreman Rockey Carpenter F 100% M3 F 24.96            177.72       4,524.92          1,100.00       4.20           346.16       PERS 1,005.89     90.19        4.88          7,076.23              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction III open position F 100% M4 F 22.64            161.23       4,104.36          1,100.00       6.55           313.98       PERS 912.40       169.30      4.88          6,611.48              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction III Ed Allen F 100% M4 F 22.64            -            3,943.13          1,100.00       6.55           301.65       OPSRP 442.03       162.65      4.88          5,960.89              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction III Dale Kentner F 100% M4 D 20.51            3,572.16          1,100.00       6.55           273.27       PERS 794.09       147.35      4.88          5,898.30              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction III Gary Carter F 100% M4 F 22.64            -            3,943.13          1,100.00       6.55           301.65       OPSRP 442.03       162.65      4.88          5,960.89              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction III Allan Avery F 100% M4 F 22.64            -            3,943.13          1,100.00       6.55           301.65       OPSRP 442.03       162.65      4.88          5,960.89              

431.00 Mechanic Robert Halcumb F 100% M4 F 22.64            161.23       4,104.36          1,100.00       4.20           313.98       PERS 912.40       81.81        4.88          6,521.63              

431.00 Drainage/Vegetation Maint open position F 100% M4 F 22.64            -            3,943.13          1,100.00       6.55           301.65       PERS 876.56       162.65      4.88          6,395.42              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction II Stephanie Herzog F 100% M5 D 18.60            -            3,239.50          1,100.00       4.20           247.82       OPSRP 363.15       133.63      4.88          5,093.18              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction II Mitchell Sanders F 100% M5 C 17.72            -            3,086.23          1,100.00       6.55           236.10       PERS 686.07       127.31      4.88          5,247.13              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction II Chuck Gage F 100% M5 F 20.51            3,572.16          1,100.00       4.20           273.27       PERS 794.09       147.35      4.88          5,895.95              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction II Justin Flores F 100% M5 E 19.53            -            3,401.48          1,100.00       6.55           260.21       PERS 756.15       140.31      4.88          5,669.57              

431.00 Road Maint/Construction I open position F 100% M6 C 16.05            -            2,795.38          1,100.00       6.55           213.85       OPSRP 313.36       115.31      4.88          4,549.32              

431.00 Engineering Tech II Gary Wolford F 100% R8 F 23.86            170.04       4,325.66          1,100.00       6.55           330.91       PERS 961.59       39.40        4.88          6,768.99              

431.00 Engineering Tech II Robert Schafer F 100% R8 F 23.86            170.04       4,325.66          1,100.00       6.55           330.91       PERS 961.59       39.40        4.88          6,768.99              

431.00 Engineering Tech II Jerry Story F 100% R8 F 23.86            170.04       4,325.66          1,100.00       6.55           330.91       PERS 961.59       39.40        4.88          6,768.99              

431.00 Sr. Accounting Specialist Susan Martin IRR 16.15            1,399.67          107.07       OPSRP 156.90       1.20          2.43          1,667.27              

431.00 Termporary Flagger open position IRR 15.00            1,300.00          99.45         53.63        2.43          1,455.50              

431.00 Termporary Flagger open position IRR 15.00            1,300.00          99.45         53.63        2.43          1,455.50              

431.00 Termporary Flagger open position IRR 15.00            1,300.00          99.45         53.63        2.43          1,455.50              

431.00 Termporary Flagger open position IRR 15.00            1,300.00          99.45         53.63        2.43          1,455.50              

412.50 Office Manager Stacy De Longe F 18% E9 C.5 717.84          -            717.84            198.00         0.76           54.91         OPSRP 80.47         0.62          0.87          1,053.47              

ROAD FUND - 1.15

LAW LIBRARY FUND - 1.25



CURRY COUNTY MASTER PAYROLL
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

Exhibit A

Page 4 of 5

Salary/ Total Health Life PERS County Workers' WC Tax Total
Dept Position Name Status % Union Range Step Hourly Longevity Gross Insurance HRA Insurance FICA Category Portion Comp Ben Fund Cost

465.20 County Administrator Clark Schrieder F 20% E19 F 1,436.60        -            1,436.60          220.00         1.31           109.90       OPSRP 161.04       1.99          0.97          1,931.81              

465.20 Community Development Director Carolyn Johnson F 25% E15 D.5 1,540.75        -            1,540.75          275.00         1.64           117.87       OPSRP 172.72       13.93        1.21          2,123.12              

SHERIFF'S RESERVE FUND - 1.28

Search and Rescue
421.21 County Sheriff John Ward EO 10% EO 631.33          631.33            100.00         0.87           48.30         PERS -             11.13        0.49          792.11                 

421.21 Captain Mick Espinoza F 25% E15 E 1,578.00        -            1,578.00          275.00         -           2.16           120.72       PERS 350.79       27.81        1.21          2,355.69              

421.21 Sergeant II Ted Heath F 15% TMSTR S18 F 871.50          -            871.50            163.41         7.50         1.30           66.67         PERS -             15.36        0.73          1,126.46              

Marine Patrol
421.23 Sergeant II Ted Heath F 70% TMSTR S18 F 4,067.00        -            4,067.00          884.87         35.00       6.06           311.13       PERS -             71.94        3.40          5,379.38              

421.23 Marine Deputy III Walter Scherbarth F 100% TMSTR S3 F 4,884.00        193.42       5,077.42          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           388.42       PERS 1,128.71     89.81        4.85          8,011.97              

Forest Patrol
421.24 Forest Patrol Deputy Jared Gray F 100% TMSTR S2 F 4,653.00        95.64         4,748.64          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           363.27       OPSRP 758.83       83.68        4.85          7,282.03              

Adult Parole and Probation
423.50 County Sheriff John Ward EO 10% EO 631.33          631.33            100.00         0.87           48.30         PERS 140.35       11.13        0.49          932.45                 

423.50 Captain Mick Espinoza F 15% E15 E 946.80          -            946.80            165.00         -           0.95           72.43         PERS 210.47       16.68        4.85          1,417.19              

423.50 Sergeant II David Denney F 100% TMSTR S18 F 5,810.00        135.40       5,945.40          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           454.82       PERS 1,321.66     104.77      4.85          9,151.91              

423.50 Adult Parole & Probation Officer III Mike Lang F 100% TMSTR S26 F 4,942.00        135.40       5,077.40          1,264.10       50.00       8.65           388.42       PERS 1,128.71     89.47        4.85          8,011.60              

423.50 Adult Parole & Probation Officer I Vicki Scott F 100% TMSTR S24 F 4,483.00        55.33         4,538.33          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           347.18       OPSRP 1,008.87     79.97        4.85          7,299.61              

423.50 Adult Parole & Probation Officer I Dona Dotson F 100% TMSTR S24 F 4,483.00        55.33         4,538.33          1,264.10       50.00       6.30           347.18       PERS 1,008.87     79.97        4.85          7,299.61              

452.50 Parks Director/Comm Service Coord Josh Hopkins F 100% N11 B 4,292.00        -            4,292.00          1,100.00       4.20           328.34       OPSRP 481.13       75.63        4.85          6,286.16              

452.50 Administrative Assistant Summer Matteson-Kinney F 20% SEIU U8 C 727.20          -            727.20            220.00         0.84           55.63         OPSRP 81.52         0.62          0.97          1,086.78              

423.60 Summer Work Crew open position IRR 14.00            606.67            -              -            46.41         -             12.33        0.93          666.34                 

423.60 Summer Work Crew open position IRR 11.00            476.67            -              -            36.47         -             9.69          0.93          523.75                 

VICTIMS' ASSISTANCE FUND - 2.12

Unitary Assessment
412.30 Victims' Assist Program Advocate Christine Mather F 34% SEIU U8 A 1,176.74        1,176.74          374.00         2.23           90.02         OPSRP 131.91       1.01          1.55          1,777.46              

412.30 Victim Advocate Jean Campbell IRR 45% 14.50            348.00            26.62         OPSRP 39.01         0.30          0.67          414.60                 

VOCA Basic
412.31 Victims' Assist Program Advocate Christine Mather F 66% SEIU U8 A 2,284.26        2,284.26          726.00         4.32           174.75       OPSRP 256.07       1.96          3.00          3,450.36              

412.31 Victim Advocate Jean Campbell IRR 55% 14.50            425.33            32.54         OPSRP 94.55         0.36          0.82          553.61                 

CHILD ADVOCACY FUND - 2.13

412.50 Coordinator/Director/Interviewer Jackie Antunes .60 FTE 66% SEIU U8 A 1,370.56        1,370.56          435.60         4.32           104.85       OPSRP 153.64       1.18          1.92          2,072.06              

COUNTY FAIR FUND - 2.14

Administration
451.40 Event Center Manager Nikki Sparks IRR 50% 20.00            866.67            66.30         OPSRP 97.15         13.90        1.21          1,045.23              

451.40 Office Assistant Linda Ash IRR 100% 12.00            1,040.00          79.56         OPSRP 116.58       0.89          2.43          1,239.46              

451.40 Maintenance Supervisor Gary Vila IRR 100% 15.00            1,300.00          99.45         OPSRP 145.73       1.12          2.43          1,548.72              

451.40 Maintenance Michael Williams IRR 100% 10.50            910.00            69.62         OPSRP 102.01       14.59        2.43          1,098.65              

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - 1.27

COUNTY PARKS FUND - 1.40



CURRY COUNTY MASTER PAYROLL
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

Exhibit A

Page 5 of 5

Salary/ Total Health Life PERS County Workers' WC Tax Total
Dept Position Name Status % Union Range Step Hourly Longevity Gross Insurance HRA Insurance FICA Category Portion Comp Ben Fund Cost
451.40 Maintenance Charles Melton IRR 100% 10.50            910.00            69.62         OPSRP 102.01       14.59        2.43          1,099.65              

Fair Operations
451.41 Event Center Manager Nikki Sparks IRR 50% 20.00            866.67            66.30         OPSRP 97.15         13.90        1.21          1,045.23              

451.41 Fair Promotion Valerie MacGillivary IRR 100% 12.00            800.00            61.20         OPSRP 89.68         0.69          1.87          953.43                 

PUBLIC SERVICES FUND - 2.17

Building
419.10 County Administrator Clark Schroeder F 10% E19 C.5 718.30          -            718.30            110.00         0.66           54.95         OPSRP 80.52         1.00          0.49          965.91                 

424.20 Community Development Director Carolyn Johnson F 37.5% E15 D.5 2,311.13        -            2,311.13          412.50         2.46           176.80       OPSRP 259.08       18.91        1.82          3,182.69              

424.20 Building Official open position F 100% E11 F 5,214.00        -            5,214.00          1,100.00       6.55           398.87       OPSRP 584.49       42.67        4.85          7,351.44              

424.20 Sr. Planner/Code Enforcement Officer open position .5 FTE 50% N10 A 973.00          973.00            550.00         3.28           74.43         OPSRP 109.07       8.80          2.43          1,721.01              
424.20 Administrative Assistant Shellie Creighton F 100% U8 B 3,245.00        -            3,245.00          1,100.00       4.20           248.24       OPSRP 363.76       2.78          4.55          4,968.54              

424.20 Planner Nancy Chester F 20% SEIU U7 D.5 665.40          14.72         680.12            220.00         1.31           52.03         OPSRP 76.24         0.58          0.91          1,031.19              

424.20 Plumbing Inspector Hank Eckardt IRR 50.00            833.33            -              -            63.75         -             6.82          1.40          905.30                 
424.20 Building Inspector IV Dave Bassett IRR 35.00            583.33            -              -            44.63         -             4.77          1.40          634.13                 

424.20 Building Inspector IV Dan Sigvartsen IRR 35.00            1,843.33          -              -            141.02       -             15.09        1.40          2,000.83              

424.20 Administrative Assistant Penny Hudgens IRR 15.00            1,235.00          -              -            94.48         PERS 274.54       1.06          2.31          1,607.38              

424.20 Administrative Assistant Barbara Gauntlett IRR 15.00            1,235.00          -              -            94.48         OPSRP 138.44       1.06          2.31          1,471.29              

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES FUND - 2.20

BOC Office
411.10 County Administrator Clark Schroeder F 65% E19 C.5 4,668.95        -            4,668.95          715.00         4.26           357.17       OPSRP 523.39       4.01          3.15          6,275.93              
411.10 Administrative Assistant John Jezuit F 100% N8 A 3,202.00        -            3,202.00          1,100.00       6.55           244.95       OPSRP 358.94       2.75          4.85          4,920.05              

Accounting
415.12 County Accountant Louise Kallstrom F 100% E13 F 5,479.00        -            5,479.00          1,100.00       6.55           419.14       PERS 1,217.98     4.70          4.85          8,232.23              

415.12 Sr. Accounting Clerk Cena Crook F 100% SEIU U8 B 3,245.00        48.67         3,293.67          1,100.00       4.20           251.97       OPSRP 369.22       2.83          4.55          5,026.43              

-                  -                      

County Counsel -                  -                      

415.30 County Legal Counsel John Huttl F 86% E17 F 6,328.74        -            6,328.74          946.00         3.61           484.15       PERS 1,406.88     5.43          4.17          9,178.98              

415.30 Legal Assistant Brenda Starbird F 100% N8 E.5 3,988.00        -            3,988.00          1,100.00       6.55           305.08       PERS 886.53       3.42          4.55          6,294.14              

Payroll and Personnel -                  -                      

412.50 Payroll & Personnel Coordinator Julie Swift F 100% N9 F 4,224.00        173.74       4,397.74          1,100.00       6.55           336.43       PERS 977.62       3.77          4.55          6,826.66              

-                  -                      

Occupancy - Central -                  -                      

419.41 Facilities Director Eric Hanson F 50% E11 A 2,043.00        29.02         2,072.02          550.00         3.28           158.51       OPSRP 232.27       39.80        2.43          3,058.29              

419.41 Facilities Maintenance Worker Tad Ringulet F 15% SEIU U6 B.5 438.15          438.15            165.00         0.98           33.52         OPSRP 49.12         8.42          0.73          695.91                 

419.41 Custodian Terry Williams .45 FTE 100% SEIU U5 B 1,163.25        1,163.25          -              88.99         OPSRP 130.40       22.34        2.18          1,407.16              

BUILDING REPAIR AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS FUND - 2.33 -                  -                      

-                  -                      

419.40 Facilities Director Eric Hanson F 50% E11 A 2,043.00        29.02         2,072.02          550.00         3.28           158.51       OPSRP 232.27       39.80        2.43          3,058.29              

419.40 Facilities Maintenance Worker Tad Ringulet F 35% SEIU U6 B.5 1,022.35        1,022.35          385.00         2.29           78.21         OPSRP 114.61       19.64        1.70          1,623.79              



      NAME     MONTH    %   VAC HRS

2018

Brenda Starbird October 1.50        10.00      5 years
Jeremy Krohn 1.50        10.00      5 years

2019

Gary Carter January 1.50        10.00      5 years
Wendy Carpenter January 2.50        11.25      10 years
Tracy Garner January 5.00        16.00      20 years
Joel Hensley January 5.00        16.00      20 years

Nat Hughes February 1.50        10.00      5 years
Cena Crook February 2.50        11.25      10 years 

Stacy DeLonge March 1.50        10.00      5 years
Tracey Morse March 1.50        10.00      5 years
Nancy Chester March 3.50        13.13      15 years

Ryan Brose 1.50        10.00      5 years
Lloyd Matlock April 3.50        14.00      15 years

Mick Espinoza June 2.50        10.00      5 years

EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY FOR LONGEVITY INCREASE
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19



 

POSITION   MONTHLY ANNUAL

Commissioner Huxley 833.33        10,000.00 
Commissioner Gold 833.33        10,000.00 
Commissioner Boice 3,872.42     44,469.00 

County Sheriff 6,313.33     88,480.00 

County Assessor 5,395.50     64,746.00 

County Clerk 5,341.50     64,098.00 

County Treasurer 5,293.67     63,524.00 

SALARIES OF ELECTED OFFICIALS
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19





















































































































































































































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Options for Opioid Litigation Participation 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☐ No  ☒              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting County Administrator Approval 
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06/27/2018 DEPARTMENT: Legal / Admin TIME NEEDED: 15 mins 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  OLD BUSINESS, ETC 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: Huttl/Schroeder/Boice PHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 06/22/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) See memo 
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Memorandum 
(2) Daily Astoria Article June 12, 2018 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      MEMORANDUM 
 

FROM  John R. Huttl, Curry County Counsel 

 

TO   Board of Commissioners and County Administrator 

 

RE:   Opioid Litigation Options 

 

DATE:   June 27, 2018 

____________________________ 
 
Introduction 

This memorandum follows an executive session discussion from January 2018.  In that session, 

options for the Board to pursue opioid litigation were presented. No decisions were made after 

the executive session.  If the Board wants to pursue options, it should do so soon, because the 

opportunity to join or commence litigation may be limited.  

 

Since the executive session, I tasked contract outside legal counsel with investigating our 

options.  She recommended using a law firm in Washington state to represent the county.  

While I have record of the executive session, I don’t have any record of communicating the 

options to the Board, even though I strongly feel I did, and received a luke-warm reception that 

I interpreted as a do-nothing option which would be a default to go to Option (3) below.  

 

Discussion 

a. Disclaimer 

First, County Counsel has no expertise or experience on complex litigation such as opioid 

litigation.  Therefore, this information is presented second-hand and very generically.  If the 

Board wants more detailed information, it can interview any of the attorneys at its choice.   

 

b. Synopsis 

Opioid abuse is a national health epidemic.  Curry County is not immune and by percentage of 

population, we are as adversely impacted as anyone.  The facts supporting the claims for relief 

are that opioid manufacturers misled regulators, health care professionals, and the public about 

the harmful and addictive nature of opioids; and that the manufacturers instead engaged in 

conduct to create the epidemic.  The epidemic has resulted in increased costs – medical; social 

services; law enforcement; societal – to communities that are incurred by local governments.   

County Counsel 



 

c. Options for Litigation 

For the most part, the options for litigation are in three general categories:  (1) Become part of a 

large national opioid litigation in Federal Court; (2) Join one of the existing Oregon counties 

(Lane, Multnomah) who are suing the opioid manufacturers in state court or sue on our own; or 

(3) Wait for the Oregon Attorney General to obtain a recovery and share the proceeds with local 

governments (similar to tobacco litigation model).  

 

d. Advantages and disadvantages of each model.  

My understanding is that in each model, the County would not pay the attorney who represents 

the county against the opioid manufacturers. So each option is the same in that respect.   

 

The costs to the county would be staff time to generate the facts of the added expenses to the 

county due to opioids.  This would likely be the same in each model, except perhaps for Option 

3 where the state Attorney General would be able to generate that information.  It is also 

possible that in each model, the cases would settle before incurring such costs.  

 

The perceived downside to the different models are:  Option 1, many will say that only the 

lawyers will make any money; Option 2, this will likely incur the most cost for the county; 

Option 3, many feel the amount received by counties from the state was not a fair share.   

 

e. Next steps 

Recently, Portland Attorney Tom D’Amore has been in discussions with Clark Schroeder and 

Commissioner Court Boice about Curry County joining multi-district litigation, which would be 

Option 1.  Other Oregon counties have used Mr. D’Amore to represent them in this litigation.   

 

Conclusion  

If the County is going to actively pursue opioid litigation, it would take Board direction.  

 

 

 

 /s/ 

John R. Huttl 

Curry County Counsel 



��������� ���	
��
����	��

���
����
��
��	�����
���
��	
�
�����
���
	

	���
��
������
����	
�
�����
���

�
���
 ����
!
	������		�"�����#������
	�����#��$������%���
�������������	
�������	�
����
����������	���������
��	�����������
	�
	�����������������	 ��&'�
()*+,-.//.01)1 23.,4)567,89:;05)1<�=��
���
��
>���
��?
����
��"��!@��
	
�������
��
>���
��?
����
�"&�!@A6):9;B,A;C1:7D9,B0.9.1*.,51,1):5;1)66)E9C5:,),FG;;H,/509:,9:.BD,51,;B5;5H,/5G3:�����
�����

�����

�����
��
��
����	��

��	�����
��	�
���
��	
I	�

��	
��	
�����
���
�
��	�����
���
��	
�����
	
����$����	����$������	����

���
��
	��=�	��

����
�����	
���	
��
����	�?
=�	
�����

��J��J����	�
	��
�

��

��
	��
����	
	�
���=
������
�����	���
����
�K	���
����
=�����
	������	���$#���	
��
����	�
L�����
�
�������
��
M�����
����	��

��
�
���
��	
	��	?
���
���?
�
=����
�����
=�
�
�������
L����
��
M���
���
��J��J�


����

��
�	�����$$���	��

����


	��
����	��#���

��	
����$

�
��$=��
��
����
$������	����

���
��
	��=�	��

N
	������$�
�������
�����$�	���
�=��	
�����	���
��	��	���
���
�����O��	�
������
P������N

�����
=���
$���
��
	��
��
���
�=���	�
���

��P�

��
������
�����	���
	��
��
		��
������
#QR��	
I
����
�����
��$�
���$
	��

�����
=�
�
$�L��
������
��
	��
�����?
$�
���=��
�J��	?S

���
 �#
���$�

 �����?
	������	��

��=���
����	�
�������#
Q!
��	
��
������
��
���
��
��
	��
�����=���	�
��
��	���	
#S@���
	���
�T
������	
��
���	
��
����	�
��
����	

����
���
���=��
������

��
���U?
���������
	�
	��
M�����
V���	�!�	����	�#
�����
����	��

��	�?
=�
��$����
��?
��

&U
������	
N
	��
TW	�
�����
	
������
��
���
����	�
��
	��
����	��#V�����
���
$�K��
���
����	���
����

���
	�
��
�J����
�
���	�

���$
���W
	�
����?
���������
	�
���	
��
����	�
@������XK�$����
>�!��
Y�������#Q@�
	
��
���	
��
�����
=�
��������
�����
=�
������	���Z��
�

=��
��	

=�
	��
��
	��=�	��?S

���
@������
[�
�
��
 �!$������
Y����?
�����
�

�����
��	���
	��
M�����
����	��

��
	��

��	#
QY��������?
��
��
��

���
?
	��
����	��

�����	
�����������	�
$�P���
�
��	
��
$����#
������

�
�������
�=��	
	��
���$
	���

��
�J���
���#S �
	��=�	��


��
	���
��
��	
$������	���
��
���
���=�
	��
����
?
���
	��
\#]#
 ���
X������$��	
!�$���
	��	���
�
��
���
�=��
���
��$�	���
������	���#!<
<VM�M�<!�[I�̂ 
]I]M����	
��
����	�
��

L�����
�
���
��	
�����
	������
$������	����
#



��������� ���	
��
����	��

���
����
��
��	�����
���
��	
�
�����
���
	

	���
��
������
����	
�
�����
���

�
���
 ����
!
	������		�"�����#������
	�����#��$������%���
�������������	
�������	�
����
����������	���������
��	�����������
	�
	�����������������	 ��&'(�)��
���
����*
	��
����
	��	
��
	��+�	��

���
��
���
�+��
���
	��
��$+��
��
������
���
����	���

���		��
�����

��$$��
��
�
���
���,

�����
	������
��
���
	��
����$����	����

�����
�����
��	�����
���,

���
�

������	��#
���
�
+����������
��	

�����
+�
+�		��

��)��
�����

���
	��
���	
���
�
*
��	���
	���
	�����
	�
�������	
+��$�
	������
��	���	���*-
.���/��,��*

�����
)���
���
����	
��
	��
0���	�����
 �
	��+�	���
!�������*

���
��
�

	�	�$��	# �!$���
���
(����
��

������
	�
���
���
��
	��
�����
��
	

��
+�����
��
	��
����	��

��
��	���
���
�
�1
������	
���
��
������������
��$���

�������#
���	
��
����	�
����
��
0��	���
2������

	���
����	�
��$$�

�����

��
	
$��	�
3
�����
	�	����
)�	�
	�
��	��
	��
��	���	���
3
	��	

��
���

��	

��
�
'�����
����	�)�#-/����	���

���

��,���
$���	���
��$���

�

����
�


�$�
��
	���	���

��
���
��$�����

$��

���
	��
����
#
���
�$���	
����$���

�)����+��
	�
��	��

���
����	��

����
+�
��)�����
��
����$���
���	����
�������

�

�)������
���
��	�
���

�����# �$���

�����
+�
+�
��
��
�����
��
	

���
���
�������$��	*
����
������$

���
������
��
4���
������	���
*
���
�5�$���#'6	�

�����
	�
+�
)���

�������
	�
����
����	�*-
2�
�

���#!�	��
	��
��	���	����

��
��)���
���
�*
�	
�����
	�,�
�
��$+��
��
	���
#
 ��
	�
�	

��$���5�	�
���
	��
�����
)���$�
��
���	��
��)��)��*
	��
�������
4����
$��
����
�
���	���
'+�����	���
��
�
#-
���
�
��
�

3
��,���
��	
	��
7�����
����	��

3
�������	���
	�
	����
�����
4���
���	���

���
+�
��
��)��
	����*
��������
�����	�
���

�		��$��	
��
��

���

��
7���*
2�
�

���#6�
��

�		��$��	
�

�������
��
	��
$���
��
�*
$���
4���
���	���

3
���������
	��
7�����
����	��

3
$��
��	���
	�
��
��)�	����

�������
��$�����	

��
�������
����	

��	���
	����
��$�

	�	�
#'���

�

������
4�
	

��	
��
��
�����
������8�	�����
��������*-
2�
�

���#
'6�
	����
�

�
��	�����
��
���	���*
�	�

�+��	
$�,���
���
���
����	��

��)�
�

��	
�	
	��
	�+��#-9:;<=>=;>?;<=@ �����*
���
��

+���
����	�����
$�������

����
	��
$����AB�
*

���
���
����	���
��)��

��)�
�++��
���
������	��������	
��

������#C��������
��
	��
�A��
*

	�	�
$������
��������

�����

�
����
��
��)�,�
�����
�

���
���	��

���
���
���+��
����	�)���

$����$���	

��
������
#
!
���
������

��	��*
	��

	�	�
����
��	���
3
���������
	��	
	��
�
��	�
�������
����
����
��	
+������������
	���	��
3
+�����
$������
��������

���$

���	������
���	��

���
���
���+��
���D��	�
������
�$���	
#'6�
	��
�����
�A�
*
��
����
+��������
	�
��	
�
������
��
�	#
C�	
���)�

��$��
	�
��)�

����
���$
��
	
	�
��
	*
���$��������
���+��
	�
�)�����
���+��*-
 �����

���#E��)�	��
���
����	���
��)��

��������
������
	��
��
	
	��
������
*
���
���	��

��)�
�+
��+��
���	���
$
���
	����
���	
��
	��������
���
�
#
F����

�$�
��
	��
'+��	

��
	��
������-
���	��

��)�
������
	��
+��$�*
��	
������
�

�����	��
�	
	��
$��������������
*
 �����

���#'F�
����
+����
��
���
��	�
���
���+���
����
�$���	

��
�����	��

	������
	�������

	��	
����
������
+�
	��
������$�����
*-
��

���#
'6	�

�
$����

��
	#- �����
��,����
	��
������
�

��
	�
���+��$


����������
	�+����*
��
	��	
+�	�
��)��)�
��	��	�����
)����+��*
+�	
�����������	�)�*

�+
	����

�
��
���
�����	#
G	�	�

���
������		�
$�,��

�������
�
$��	�+�������������

�		��$��	
��
	�+���������	������$

��
�AA�
	��	
���	�����
$��,�	���#'F���
���
	���,
�+��	
	��
	�+����
���
��	*
���
	��

�

������
	��

�$�
	����*
�	
�����
+�
�
�
����
�5����
�*-
 �����

���#



��������� ���	
��
����	��

���
����
��
��	�����
���
��	
�
�����
���
	

	���
��
������
����	
�
�����
���

�
���
 ����
!
	������		�"�����#������
	�����#��$������%���
�������������	
�������	�
����
����������	���������
��	�����������
	�
	�����������������	 &�&'()*+,-.(/+ 01234561745-879:;5<1=:;345>3?:;934@�
���	�����
	�����A
�����
	
�
�����	
��
	��
B$����
�����C
��
��	��

��
��
	��
�����
���

��
��

������#
@�
����

���
���������
���
�����
�������D�
	��	
�������
����
�

��������	
	�
	���	
���
������

��E�
�
����
	�
����
F
��
	��
����	
��
�
#BG�����
����
	�
�����
	���
	����
�


���
�
	����
�

�������
����AC
 �����

���#
BG�����
��E�
����
	��	
�����	
H�
��
��E��H�

�		���
������
���
�����
���$
������
#C-IJ=K3J4?:L4@�		���
	��
$������	����

���
�����	
���$
����

���

�

�
B����
���
	

	��AC

���
 �HH��
M�����A
�
$�$H��
��
	��
����$H��G������
��������	��
����
N�����D�	���
O����
��
 ����	��
#M���
�$���	��	A
	�����A
����
H�
���	���
���

H�	����
��H���A
���E�	�
���
��������	
��	���
	

��
��	�����

���
�

�������P������
������$

���
$��	��
����	�
	���	$��	#
���	
�����
��Q����
�
��$������
�E�
����
��E��E���
$���
��$$���	������
A
M�����

���#BR	�$$���
	��
	���
��
	��

�

��	
�����
	�
H�
	��
��
��	
��
���
������
������AC

��

���#
B�����
��

	�
H�
�
���
���H��
���
���������
��	�
	��
#
S����
	�����
	�
������	
	��
��	

���
������	
	��
�����
	���	���
	��	
�

������
���
	���	$��	#C���
��$���P
��	���	���
������	��
������	��	��
��
N���
$��A
���������
��
��$���

�������
���
��������	

�	A
������	
�$�
��
	��
�
��	
#B���
���
��	A
�����E��
�	�

�����A
����
��$��
	��	�
	��

�

���

��$���P�	�AC
 �����

���#



County Fips Code County, 2016 population MME_PerCap_2010 MME_PerCap_2015 Quartile_2015 2010-2015 Change
41055 SHERMAN 1,795 N/A N/A N/A N/A
41069 WHEELER 1,465 N/A N/A N/A N/A
41015 CURRY 22,600 2196.7 1800.0 4 Decreased
41001 BAKER 16,510 1551.2 1611.7 4 Stable
41045 MALHEUR 31,705 1271.8 1596.5 4 Increased
41061 UNION 26,745 1255.5 1564.6 4 Increased
41057 TILLAMOOK 25,920 1998.2 1549.0 4 Decreased
41041 LINCOLN 47,735 1710.4 1539.3 4 Decreased
41011 COOS 63,190 1850.9 1479.9 4 Decreased
41033 JOSEPHINE 84,675 1685.3 1421.0 4 Decreased
41007 CLATSOP 38,225 2298.7 1407.4 4 Decreased
41029 JACKSON 213,765 1738.8 1340.1 4 Decreased
41037 LAKE 8,015 1329.0 1185.6 4 Decreased
41065 WASCO 26,700 1814.9 1171.8 4 Decreased
41039 LANE 365,940 1303.0 1168.6 4 Decreased
41019 DOUGLAS 110,395 1383.8 1133.9 4 Decreased
41063 WALLOWA 7,140 760.9 1094.4 4 Increased
41043 LINN 122,315 1311.2 1038.0 4 Decreased
41059 UMATILLA 79,880 942.1 969.8 4 Stable
41021 GILLIAM 1,980 N/A 954.8 3 N/A
41025 HARNEY 7,320 1280.8 940.1 3 Decreased
41035 KLAMATH 67,410 970.3 841.6 3 Decreased
41013 CROOK 21,580 752.7 810.5 3 Stable
41005 CLACKAMAS 404,980 932.7 734.2 3 Decreased
41009 COLUMBIA 50,795 1028.5 701.4 3 Decreased
41071 YAMHILL 104,990 1103.9 688.9 3 Decreased
41017 DESCHUTES 176,635 812.5 683.0 3 Decreased
41047 MARION 333,950 842.0 622.4 2 Decreased
41027 HOOD RIVER 24,735 1005.0 621.0 2 Decreased
41053 POLK 79,730 563.5 473.3 2 Decreased
41051 MULTNOMAH 790,670 812.3 463.8 2 Decreased
41031 JEFFERSON 22,790 489.2 445.3 1 Stable
41003 BENTON 91,320 507.7 430.5 1 Decreased
41067 WASHINGTON 583,595 652.8 428.8 1 Decreased
41049 MORROW 11,745 99.5 112.0 1 Increased
41023 GRANT 7,410 882.1 39.0 1 Decreased



0.0

200.0

400.0

600.0

800.0

1000.0

1200.0

1400.0

1600.0

1800.0

2000.0

Oregon Counties 
MME per capita 2015 



0.0

500.0

1000.0

1500.0

2000.0

2500.0

Oregon Counties 
MME per capita 2010 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Abel Insurance – SAIF Insurance Renewal for 2018-
2019   
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06-27-18  DEPARTMENT:  Counsel  TIME NEEDED:  2 min.  
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: J. Huttl   PHONE/EXT: x3218   TODAY’S DATE: 06-27-18  
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Renewal of the insurance policy 
for 2018-2019 fiscal year 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Saif = Election for Guaranteed Cost Plan  
(2) Order Approving   
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Policy_Proposal_Packet_GCNOE Created on 05/15/2018

CURRY COUNTY
Notice of Election for Guaranteed Cost Plan

Period: 07/01/2018 - 07/01/2019 Policy: 486686

Group: OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYERS GROUP Plan: 1

Agency: ABEL INSURANCE AGENCY
Producer: WENDY ABEL-HATZEL

Premium Estimate:
Modified premium $72,596
Group discount $3,630
Annual prepay discount (3.5%) $2,414
Standard premium $66,553
Premium discount $9,804
Total premiums and assessments $61,779

Payroll reporting frequency: Annual

Please visit saif.com and choose Safety and health for information about safety or choose Employer Guide for
information about reporting payroll, paying online, filing and managing a claim, and coverage.

I, the undersigned, as a legal representative of the company listed above, do hereby authorize SAIF Corporation to
issue the policy and determine workers’ compensation premiums according to the plan selection on this form. I
have read, understand, and agree to the terms and conditions of this plan as set forth in the proposal.

Authorized signature of insured Date signed

Please return this page to:

SAIF CORPORATION
400 High St SE
Salem, OR 97312-1000



 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

In the Matter of an Order   ) 
Approving the SAIF    ) 
Renewal Insurance    ) ORDER No. ________________ 
for 2017-2018    ) 
 

WHEREAS, Abel Insurance is the County’s Agent of Record; and   
 

WHEREAS, Curry County has insurance for Worker’s Compensation, 
through SAIF, through our Agent of Record; and    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY ORDERS that it approves the renewal of SAIF Insurance for the 2018-
2019 fiscal year.   
  

DATED this 27th day of June, 2018. 
 
 

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      
     ________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
Approved as to Form: 
 
     _________________________________ 
______________________ Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel  
     _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Abel Insurance – Brookings Airport Insurance Policy 
Renewal  
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06-27-18  DEPARTMENT:  Counsel  TIME NEEDED:  2 min.  
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: J. Huttl   PHONE/EXT: x3218   TODAY’S DATE: 06-27-18  
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Renewal of the insurance policy 
for 2018-2019 fiscal year, year 2 of 3.  This will be cancelled and prorated upon close of 
sale to City of Brookings.  Closing date has been extended to July 12, 2018.   
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Renewal Quote letter, renewal Order from Abel  
(2) Order Approving   
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


NORTHWEST INSURANCE GROUP, INC.  3301 NE CORNELL ROAD, SUITE R  HILLSBORO, OR  97124  503-640-6060  FAX 503-640-6202  NWINSURANCE.NET 
 

 

 
 

CONFIRMATION OF INSURANCE 
 
 

Airport Owners & Operators Liability Policy RENEWAL QUOTATION 
 

        Insurance Policy Renewal  
 
 
May 30, 2018 
 
 
Greetings Wendy, 
 
This is the 2nd year or our three year policy with Berkley Aviation.   Because it is a 3 year policy, the premium is 
fixed for all 3 years and will remain unchanged for the 2018-19 premium year.   We will not be requiring any 
new applications during the 3 year term.  
 
However, please document and send us any changes to the airport operations for the 2017-18 policy year.  
  
Attached is the same quotation for this year through the issuing company, the StarNet Insurance Company, an 
A+XV Rated insurance carrier.    
 
Please:  
1.) Have the attached order page signed by the appropriate municipal representative, and 
2.) email (leslie@nwinsurance.net) or fax-return (503-640-6202)  the signed order 

 
We invite the insured to send us documents or call us about insurance concerns regarding airports, airport 
leases, operations, etc.   Airshows and other competitive or exhibition type events at airports pose additional 
insurance problems and need to be addressed in advance of those schedules. 
 
Please call if you have questions (503-640-6060).  Many thanks again for your business. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 

 
Leslie J. Birr  
Program Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NORTHWEST INSURANCE GROUP, INC. 
Aviation Insurance Brokerage & Risk Management Services 

 
 

mailto:LESLIE@NWINSURANCE.NET


NORTHWEST INSURANCE GROUP, INC.  3301 NE CORNELL ROAD, SUITE R  HILLSBORO, OR  97124  503-640-6060  FAX 503-640-6202  NWINSURANCE.NET 
 

Airport Owners & Operators Liability Policy RENEWAL ORDER  
NAMED INSURED  

 Named Insured CURRY COUNTY OF OREGON 
 Mailing Address 94235 MOORE STREET #125, GOLD BEACH, OR 97444 
 Airport  BOK – BROOKINGS AIRPORT          Located in BROOKINGS, OR 
 Policy Renewal Date 

Insurance Company 
JULY 1, 2018   
STARNET INSURANCE COMPANY 

 Renewal of Policy #  BA-17-07-00142 
 

 
COVERAGE LIMITS  

Coverage A Bodily Injury and Property Damage  $10,000,000 OCCURRENCE 

 Products & Completed Operations $10,000,000 AGGREGATE  

 Malpractice Liability $10,000,000 AGGREGATE 

 Fire Damage Limit Any One Fire $250,000  

Coverage B Personal &  Advertising Injury Liability $10,000,000 AGGREGATE 

Coverage C Medical Expense Any One Person $25,000  

Coverage D Hangarkeeper’s Liability Coverage   

       Each Aircraft Limit $10,000,000 ANY ONE AIRCRAFT 

       Each Loss Limit $10,000,000 ANY ONE OCCURRENCE 

       Deductible (Each Aircraft) NIL 

Coverage E Non-owned Aircraft Liability $10,000,000 

Coverage Territory World wide INCLUDED 
Extended Coverage War, Hi-jacking TRIA Liability INCLUDED 

Deductible Each Occurrence or Offense Amount NIL EACH AND EVERY LOSS 
 

ENHANCED COVERAGES  
 AP 77 10 02 15 

CG 72 11 07 06 
14 02 0 AL 74 9 
CG 76 46 11 07 

CG 76 361 07 06 
CG 76 41 07 06 

CG 76 356 11 07  

AIRPORT OWNERS & OPERATORS LIABILITY DECLARATIONS 
AIRPORT POLICY PROVISIONS (STARNET) 
DATE CHANGE RECOGNITION 
SILICA AND SILILCA RELATED DUST EXCLUSION 
ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSONS OR ORGANIZATIONS 
IMMUNITY WAIVER 
KNOWLEDGE OF OCCURRENCE 

 CG763450706  
CG763581107 

CG76470706 

AIRPORT ENHANCED COVERAGE 
EXCESS AUTO LEGAL LIABILITY AND EXCESS EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY 
3-YEAR POLICY 

 
 

PREMIUM  
 Total Annual Premium $  3,019    RENEW FOR THE SECOND YEAR OF THE 3-YEAR POLICY AS QUOTED  

  
  THERE HAVE BEEN NO CHANGES TO THE AIRPORT OPERATIONS IN THE LAST YEAR 

    or 
  THE CHANGES IN THE AIRPORT OPERATIONS IN THE LAST YEAR ARE LISTED BELOW: 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 

x 
                      SIGNED         PRINTED  TITLE   DATE 

 



 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

In the Matter of an Order   ) 
Approving the Brookings   ) 
Airport Renewal Insurance  )  ORDER No. ________________ 
for 2017-2018    ) 
 

WHEREAS, Abel Insurance is the County’s Agent of Record; and   
 

WHEREAS, Curry County has insurance for the Brookings Airport through 
Berkley Aviation, through our Agent of Record; and    
 
 WHEREAS, this insurance policy would be the second of a three year 
policy plan, with no increase in premium, such premium rebated pro-rated upon 
sale to City of Brookings; and   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY ORDERS that it approves the renewal order for the 2018-2019 fiscal 
year.   
 DATED this 27th day of June, 2018. 
 
 

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      
     ________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
Approved as to Form: 
 
     _________________________________ 
______________________ Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel  
     _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Abel Insurance – CIS Liability Insurance for 2018-2019   
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  06-27-18  DEPARTMENT:  Counsel  TIME NEEDED:  2 min.  
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: J. Huttl   PHONE/EXT: x3218   TODAY’S DATE: 06-27-18  
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Renewal of the insurance policy 
for 2018-2019 fiscal year 
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Property and Liability Proposal Summary   
(2) Order Approving   
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Member

Curry County

94235 Moore Street, Ste 123

Gold Beach, OR 97444

20006 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 5/15/2018

Member Number Effective Date Termination Date Proposal Date

Agent

Abel Insurance Agency

PO Box 1780

Coos Bay,  OR 97420

Property and/or Liability Proposal Summary

Coverage Description Amount Total Due

General Liability (Retro Plan) Contribution                 Limit: $5,000,000 $215,689.30
Aggregate/Retro Deductible Credit ($99,821.00)
Multi-Line Credit ($3,506.05)
Risk Management Allowance ($11,686.83)
High Risk Activity $1,000.00 $101,675.42

Auto Liability Contribution $32,863.39
Multi-Line Credit ($985.90)
Risk Management Allowance ($3,286.34) $28,591.15

Auto Physical Damage Contribution Not Purchased
Multi-Line Credit $0.00 $0.00

Property Contribution $37,452.83
Multi-Line Credit ($1,123.58)
Risk Management Allowance ($3,745.28) $32,583.96

Optional Excess Liability Contribution Not Purchased $0.00

Optional Excess Quake Contribution Not Purchased $0.00

Optional Excess Flood Contribution Not Purchased $0.00

Optional Excess Crime Contribution $1,270.00
Risk Management Allowance ($127.00) $1,143.00

Optional Excess Cyber Liability Contribution $3,080.00
Risk Management Allowance ($308.00) $2,772.00

Difference In Conditions Contribution Not Purchased $0.00

Summary Contribution $290,355.52
Aggregate/Retro Deductible Credit ($99,821.00)
Multi-Line Credit ($5,615.53)
Risk Management Allowance ($19,153.45)
High Risk Activity $1,000.00

This is not an invoice.  Information Only Total: $166,765.53



CIS Liability Coverage Proposal

CIS
1212 Court St NE
Salem, OR  97301

Named Member
Curry County
94235 Moore Street, Ste 123
Gold Beach, OR  97444

Agent of Record
Abel Insurance Agency
PO Box 1780
Coos Bay, OR  97420

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage
Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage

Coverage Period: 7/1/2018 to 7/1/2019 5/15/2018

Coverage*
Per 

Occurrence 
Limit*

Annual
Aggregate*

Per Occurrence
Deductible / SIR*

Agg/Retro 
Deductible

Public Entity Liability Coverage (Including Auto 
Liability) as described in CIS General & Auto Liability 
Coverage Agreement

$200,000 $600,000 None $174,686.00

Forms Applicable: CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement - CIS GL/AL (7/1/2018)

Coverage*
Per 

Occurrence 
Limit

Annual
Aggregate

Excess Public Entity Liability Coverage as described 
in the CIS Excess Liability Coverage Agreement 
(limits shown are excess of primary coverage limits)

$4,800,000 $14,400,000

Forms Applicable: CIS Excess Liability Coverage Agreement - CIS XS/GL (7/1/2018)

Coverage*
Per 

Occurrence 
Limit

Annual
Aggregate

Additional layer of Excess Liability Not Purchased Not Purchased

* Refer to the CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement and CIS Excess Liability Coverage Agreement and endorsements (if any) for detailed 
coverages, special deductibles, limits, sublimits, exclusions, and conditions that may apply.  

Excess Liability Coverage does not provide Uninsured Motorist coverage.

Coverage Contribution

General Liability $216,689.30

Auto Liability $32,863.39

 Liability Total $249,552.68

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date.  Fax or email is acceptable

Accepted by:

Authorized Representative / Agent

Date:



CIS Property Coverage Proposal

CIS
1212 Court St NE
Salem, OR  97301

Named Member
Curry County
94235 Moore Street, Ste 123
Gold Beach, OR  97444

Agent of Record
Abel Insurance Agency
PO Box 1780
Coos Bay, OR  97420

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage
Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage

Coverage Period: 7/1/2018 to 7/1/2019 5/15/2018

Coverage Limits (Per Occurrence):*

Building and Contents and PIO Per current CIS Property Schedule

Mobile Equipment Per current CIS Mobile Equipment Schedule

Earthquake $5,000,000

Excess Earthquake - Coverage applies only if coverage limit is shown. None

Flood $5,000,000

Excess Flood - Coverage applies only if coverage limit is shown. None

Combined Loss of Revenue and Rental Value $1,000,000

Combined Extra Expense and Rental Expense $1,000,000

Property in Transit $1,000,000

Hired, Rented or Borrowed Equipment $150,000

Restoration/Reproduction of Books, Records, etc. $100,000

Electronic Data Restoration/Reproduction $250,000

Pollution Cleanup $25,000

Crime Coverage $50,000

Police Dogs (if scheduled) $15,000

Off Premises Service Interruption $100,000

Miscellaneous Coverage $50,000

Personal Property at Unscheduled Locations $15,000

Personal Property of Employees or Volunteers $15,000

Unscheduled Fine Arts $100,000

Temporary Emergency Shelter Restoration $50,000

Difference In Conditions - Earthquake & Flood (if any): $0

Extra Items (if any):

* This represents only a brief summary of coverages. Please refer to the CIS Property Coverage Agreement for detailed coverages,  exclusions, and 
conditions that may apply.

Locations Covered: Per current CIS Property Schedule.

Perils Covered: Risks of Direct Physical Loss subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions contained in the coverage forms listed below under 
Forms Applicable.

Deductibles: $25,000 Per occurrence except as noted and as follows (if any).

$25,000 Per occurrence on scheduled mobile equipment items.

Earthquake and Flood: Special deductibles and restrictions per Section 2 of the CIS Property Coverage Agreement.

Total Contribution: $37,452.83 (Property) $0.00 (Excess Earthquake)

Forms Applicable: CIS Property Coverage Agreement - CIS PR (7/1/2018)

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date.  Fax or email is acceptable

Accepted by:

Authorized Representative / Agent

Date:



CIS Equipment Breakdown Coverage Proposal

CIS
1212 Court St NE
Salem, OR  97301

Named Member
Curry County
94235 Moore Street, Ste 123
Gold Beach, OR  97444

Agent of Record
Abel Insurance Agency
PO Box 1780
Coos Bay, OR  97420

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage
Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage

Coverage Period: 7/1/2018 to 7/1/2019 5/15/2018

Coverage Limits:*

Property Damage Per current CIS Property Schedule or $100,000,000, whichever is less.

Rental Value/Rental Expense Included in Property Damage

Extra Expense Included in Property Damage

Service Interruption Included in Property Damage

Drying out following a flood Included in Property Damage

Course of Construction Included in Property Damage

Computer Equipment Included in Property Damage

Portable Equipment Included in Property Damage

CFC Refrigerants Included in Property Damage

Hazardous Substance $2,000,000

Data Restoration $250,000

Perishable Goods $2,000,000

Expediting Expense $2,000,000

Demolition $2,000,000

Ordinance or Law $2,000,000

Off Premises Property Damage $250,000

Contingent Rental Value/Rental Expense $250,000

Newly Acquired Locations $1,000,000 / 365 days max.

Extended Period of Restoration 30 Days

* This represents only a brief summary of coverages. Please refer to CIS Equipment Breakdown Coverage Agreement for detailed coverages, 
exclusions, and conditions that may apply.

Locations Covered: Per current CIS Property Schedule.

Deductible: $25,000  All Coverages: 24 hour waiting period applies for service interruption.

Contribution: Included

Forms Applicable: Equipment Breakdown Coverage Agreement - CIS BM (7/1/2018)

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date.  Fax or email is acceptable

Accepted by:

Authorized Representative / Agent

Date:



CIS Excess Crime Coverage Proposal

CIS
1212 Court St NE
Salem, OR  97301

Named Member
Curry County
94235 Moore Street, Ste 123
Gold Beach, OR  97444

Agent of Record
Abel Insurance Agency
PO Box 1780
Coos Bay, OR  97420

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage
Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage

Coverage Period: 7/1/2018 to 7/1/2019 5/15/2018

Excess Crime Coverage

Coverage Limits excess of $50,000 crime coverage provided under the CIS Property Coverage Agreement *

     Employee Theft - Per Loss Coverage  $500,000

     Forgery or Alteration Included

     Inside Premises - Theft of Money & Securities Included

     Inside Premises - Robbery, Safe Burglary - Other Included

     Outside Premises Included

     Computer Fraud Included

     Money Orders and Counterfeit Paper Currency Included

     Funds Transfer Fraud Included

     Impersonation Fraud Coverage  Maximum recovery ** $250,000

** Recovery subject to lower limit purchased by member if under $250,000   

  Additional Coverages:

     Faithful Performance of Duty Included

* This represents only a brief summary of coverages. Please refer to the Excess Crime Policy for detailed coverages, exclusions, and conditions that 
may apply.

Locations Covered: Per current CIS Property Schedule.

Contribution: $1,270.00

Forms Applicable: National Union Fire Insurance/Excess Crime Policy

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date.  Fax or email is acceptable

Accepted by:

Authorized Representative / Agent

Date:



Excess Cyber Security Expense
Coverage Proposal

CIS
1212 Court St NE
Salem, OR  97301

Named Member
Curry County
94235 Moore Street, Ste 123
Gold Beach, OR  97444

Agent of Record
Abel Insurance Agency
PO Box 1780
Coos Bay, OR  97420

This Proposal Does Not Bind Coverage
Refer to Coverage Forms for terms, conditions, and limitations of coverage

Coverage Period: 7/1/2018 to 7/1/2019 5/15/2018

Excess Cyber Security Expense Coverage $200,000

Coverage Limits excess of $50,000 coverage provided under the CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement *

     Notification Costs Included

     Third Party Liability Included

     Penalties Included

     Extortion Included

     Breach Coaching Included

     Public Relations Consulting Included

     Credit Monitoring Included

     Impersonation Fraud Coverage ** Included

          ** Subject to a separate $250,000 deductible

* This represents only a brief summary of coverages.  Please refer to the Cyber Security Expense Coverage section of the
CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement for detailed coverages, exclusions, and conditions that may apply.

Deductible $5,000

Contribution: $3,080.00

Forms Applicable: CIS General & Auto Liability Coverage Agreement (7/1/2018)

To effect coverage, please sign, date and return this form before requested effective date.  Fax or email is acceptable

Accepted by:

Authorized Representative / Agent

Date:



 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 
 

 
In the Matter of an Order   ) 
Approving the Citycounty   ) 
Insurance Renewal for Property )  ORDER NO. ______________ 
and Liability Coverage for 2018-  ) 
2019 Fiscal Year    )    
 

WHEREAS, Abel Insurance is the County’s Agent of Record; and   
 

WHEREAS, Curry County has insurance for Property and Liability through 
Citycounty Insurance Services, through our Agent of Record; and    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY ORDERS that it approves the renewal of Property and Liability Insurance 
for the 2018-2019 fiscal year.   
  

DATED this 27th day of June, 2018. 
 
 

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      
     ________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
Approved as to Form: 
 
     _________________________________ 
______________________ Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel  
     _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018 
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Update on Travel Policy Enforcement

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐       
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting 

AGENDA DATEa:   6/27/18 DEPARTMENT:  Admin TIME NEEDED: 10 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: Seeking board direction 
CONTACT PERSON: Clark Schroeder PHONE/EXT:  TODAY’S DATE: 6/22/18 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) 
County Board has given direction to Administrator Schroeder to seek out a lawyer to force compliance with travel policy and 
reimbursements from Commissioner Boice.  Administrator Schroeder is asking for a budget allocation and an upper limit on 
legal fees for said task. 

FILES ATTACHED:   
(1)  
(2)  
(3) 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED: 
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR
☐File with County Clerk  Name: 
☐Send Printed Copy to:  Address:    
☐Email a Digital Copy to:  City/State/Zip: 
☐Other  Phone:
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
Clark Schroeder 

ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018 
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Workshop Policy

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐       
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting 

AGENDA DATEa:   6/27/18 DEPARTMENT:  Admin TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: 
CONTACT PERSON: Clark Schroder PHONE/EXT:  TODAY’S DATE: 6/22/18 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) 
Some cities/counties have workshops where staff and policy setters, sit around a table together to discuss future agenda 
items and other relevant business.  This type of workshop setting is more informal, and normally is not televised thus saving 
County tax dollars.  These meetings would be audio recorded and posted online for citizen review.  

(1) Motion:  Move to hold future workshop meeting in the Blue room
(2)
(3)
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR
☐File with County Clerk  Name: 
☐Send Printed Copy to:  Address:    
☐Email a Digital Copy to:  City/State/Zip: 
☐Other  Phone:
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  

Clark Schroeder

ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us

	2018_06_27 1 DRAFT Special Meeting Agenda D3 FORMATTED
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2018_06_27 4 Road 1a ARS Pneumatic Tire Roller
	2018_06_27 5 Emergency Mgmt 1a AGRS Revision 2018_03_22 CURRENT
	2018_06_27 5 Emergency Mgmt 1b AGREEMENT Curry Co & Coos Forest Protective Assoc  UPDATED  LKallstrom 06212018  1509
	2018_06_27 5 Emergency Mgmt 1c Copy of CFPA AGREEMENT-EXHIBIT A
	Sheet1

	2018_06_27 5 Sheriff Dispatch AGRS, MEMO, and IGAs Combined
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1a AGRS_Dispatch IGA's_FY18-19_Renewal_06142018
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1b MEMO
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1c  IGA City of Port Orrford and PD
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1d IGA Port Orford Fire
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1e  IGA Gold Beach
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1f IGA Cal Ore Ground Ambulance
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1g IGA Port Orford Ambulance
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1h IGA Langlois RFPD
	2018_06_27 Sheriff 1i IGA Pistol River

	2018_06_27 7 Finance PACKET Supple Budget End of Year
	2018_06_27 Finance  1a AGRS 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers A
	2018_06_27 Finance 1b 17-18 Budget Appropriatin MEMO End Oof Year Suppl Budgets
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2018_06_27 Finance 1c 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION A
	2018_06_27 Finance 1d  17-18 Supplemental #17 Exhib A to O EOY

	2018_06_27 7a Finance PACKET
	2018_06_27 Finance 1a AGRS 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers B
	2018_06_27 Finance 1b 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION
	2018_06_27 Finance 1c 17-18 Supplemental #18 Exhib A-Sheriff Chetco
	2018_06_27 Finance 2a AGRS 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers Chetco FEMA SlipC
	2018_06_27 Finance 2b 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION C
	2018_06_27 Finance 2c 17-18 Supplemental #19 Exhib A Chetco-FEMA
	2018_06_27 Finance 3a AGRS 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers FEMA Grant SlipD
	2018_06_27 Finance 3b 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION D
	2018_06_27 Finance 3c 17-18 Supplemental #20 Exhib A Chetco-FEMA-Road
	2018_06_27 Finance 4a  AGRS 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers Commissioners Fund E
	2018_06_27 Finance 4b 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION E
	2018_06_27 Finance 4c 17-18 Supplemental #16 Exhib A & B Commissioners

	2018_06_27 8 Master Payroll
	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1a AGRS Master Payroll 18-19
	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1b ORDER Master Order 18-19
	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1c Master Payroll 18-19 spreadsheet  UPDATED JSwift 062220108 1027
	No FTE

	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1d Master Payroll 18-19 Longevity
	Sheet1

	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1e Master Payroll 18-19 Elected Officials
	Sheet1

	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1f Master Payroll 18-19 Exhibit B
	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1g Master Payroll 18-19 Exhibit C
	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1h  Master Payroll 18-19 Exhibit D
	2018_06_27 8 Personnel 1i Master Payroll 18-19 Exhibit E

	2018_06_27 9 Opioid Litigation
	2018_06_27 Counsel 1a AGRS Opioid Litigation Options 062718
	2018_06_27 Counsel 1b MEMO MT BOC re Opioid Options 062718
	2018_06_27 Counsel 1c Clatsop County’s presence in national l.
	2018_06_27 Counsel 1d with Page Breaks JUSTICE-#8594379-v1-County_MME_data_with_charts
	Sheet1


	2018_06_27 10 PACKET Abel Insurance
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 1a AGRS Order Saif Insurance Renewal
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 1b SAIF Notice of Election
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 1c ORDER SAIF Ins
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 2a AGRS Order Airport Insurance Renewal
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 2b Airport Liability Renewal ORDER
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 2c ORDER Brkg. Airport Ins.
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 3a AGRS Order CIS P&L
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 3b CIS proposal
	2018_06_27 10 Counsel 3c ORDER P&L

	2018_06_27 12 Admin 1a AGRS Revision travel policy legal budget
	2018_06_27 12 Admin 1b AGRS  Workshop meetings in the Blue room
	ADP5DCA.tmp
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS




